
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Wednesday, 6 October 2021 
 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
will meet on 

Thursday, 14 October 2021 
beginning at 

6:45 pm 
in the 

Oak Suite, Holiday Inn, Leigh Rd, Eastleigh SO50 9PG 

 
 
TO: Councillor Richard Gomer (Chair) 
 Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Janice Asman 
Councillor Alan Broadhurst 
Councillor James Duguid 
Councillor Tim Groves 
 

Councillor Lucy Jurd 
Councillor Steven Broomfield 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
Councillor Dave Kinloch 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer; Tel: 023 8068 8298; 
Email: nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 Email: 
natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 July 2021. 
 

4.   Public Participation  
 
Public seating will be limited at this meeting due to the ongoing Covid-19 
pandemic. You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following 
email: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
midday on Wednesday 13 October 2021. Please let us know if you wish to attend 
the meeting in person so that we can manage numbers.  We encourage those 
attending to wear a mask and take a test to ensure that they are not at risk of 
infecting anyone with Covid-19. 
 

5.   Chair's Report  
 

6.   New Ways with Waste Dashboard Review (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

7.   One Horton Heath - Update and Policy Development (Pages 15 - 24) 
 

8.   Asset Transfer Policy (Pages 25 - 32) 
 

9.   Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 33 - 36) 
 

10.   Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme (Pages 37 - 40) 
 

11.   Exempt Business  
 
To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 in respect of the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it 
is/they are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the 
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  This 
came into effect on 1 March 2006. 
  
It is considered that the following items are exempt from disclosure and that the 
public interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information 
 

 EXEMPT ITEM(S)  
 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


 

12.   Use of Agency Staff in Direct Services (Pages 41 - 48) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Thursday, 18 November 2021 at 6:45 pm 
In the Oak Suite, Holiday Inn, Leigh Rd, 

Eastleigh SO50 9PG 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Thursday, 15 July 2021  (6:45 pm – 9:15 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Gomer (Chair); Councillors Cross, Asman, Broadhurst, Duguid, 
Groves, Jurd, Broomfield and Tyson-Payne 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Airey and Kyrle 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kinloch 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

180. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

181. MINUTES 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 17 June 2021 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

182. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no Public Participation on this occasion. 
 

183. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair had nothing to report to the Committee. 
 

184. CONSTITUTION REVIEW GROUP FEEDBACK 
 
Cllr Jurd, Chair of group, gave the following feedback on the review of the 
Constitution: 
 
The group had met twice and worked through all sections of the 
Constitution. They considered that four material changes were required. 
Each recommendation was debated and five recommendations were 
identified. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

That the following recommendations be made to Group Leaders to be 
included in the revised Constitution before it goes to Council in 
November: 
 

1. That Part 4 - Rule of Procedure Order of Business (Mayor 
Making) 5.0 (d) Appointment of Chaplain was amended to 
(d) Appointment of Faithleader(s) at the discretion of the 
Mayor. 
 

2.  That Part 4 – Rules of Debate ‘When a Councillor may speak 
again’: 

11.4  A Councillor who has spoken on any motion shall not 
speak again whilst it is the subject of debate; except: 

a) to speak once an amendment is moved by another 
Councillor  

Be amended to support fuller debate, so that members may 
speak: 

b) To make a supplementary point 

c) To answer a question  
 
3.  That in Part 4 Planning Applications – Appendix A (page 4-

25), paragraph (e) the wording was larified (addition in 
italics) 

(e) Development which is likely to cause wide public 
controversy extending into the area of an adjoining Local 
Area Committee, or which has a clear impact beyond the 
boundaries of a single area, should be determined through 
the creation of a dedicated Management Committee, made 
up of Councillors from the affected Local Area Committees, 
which deals solely with the planning applications related to 
that development.  
 

4.  That Part 4 Planning Applications – Appendix A (page 4-25), 
paragraph (f) (ii) should be amended to detail who would 
determine whether an application was of borough-wide 
significance and also that in these instances that the 
application should be determined by Full Council. 

 
5.  That under Part 2 article 11 the Leaders consider how 

members of an LAC might appoint their own Chair, so as to 
allow all members of the Committee to formally input into 
the appointment. 

 
185. LATE REPORTS TO COMMITTEE 

 
The Panel considered the report of the Democratic Services Manager 
relating to late reports to Committee since 1 April 2020. 

6



3 
 

 
The Corporate Director introduced the report and made a commitment that 
this report would be provided annually to allow better scrutiny. 
 
Action – Corporate Leadership Board will not sign off late reports for 
Committee unless there is a justifiable and unavoidable reason Increased 
report writing training has been provided and deadlines clearly 
communicated to avoid delays.  
 
The following issues were raised: 
  
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Committee considered the data relating to late reports for 
the period 1 April 2020 – 22 June 2021, and the actions that are being 
taken to address this. 
 
It was agreed that a detailed log should be maintained by Democratic 
Services of the reason for late reports so that a summary of the 
reason can be included in the annual reporting to Councillors. And 
that, as a courtesy the meeting should be advised of the reason that 
any late report was delayed. 
 
 

186. CYCLING AND WALKING STRATEGY 
 
Councillor Airey, Cabinet lead for the Transport Portfolio introduced the 
report. 
 
The Sustainable Transport Manager provided a summary presentation of 
the Strategy to the Panel which is currently being consulted on. The 
document doesn’t look at delivery or detail actions, it talks about principles 
the Council should apply. A delivery document will emerge over the 
coming months. 
 
The Panel considered the draft Cycling and Walking Strategy. 
 
The following key points were highlighted: 
 
- The Strategy should include the role of employers and getting them to 

support promote cycling initiatives; and 

- Security of bicycles – where can cyclists store their bike safely. 
Suggestion Council looks at improved secure, facilities to store bikes 
in the Borough. 

 
The Sustainable Transport Planner advised that next steps were: 

 Edit and refine document 

 Internal consultation 

 Cabinet Decision (Sept) 

7



4 
 

 Public consultation (Sep – Nov) 

 Analyse responses 

 Cabinet Decision late 2021/early 2022 
 
A Sustainable Transport Strategy was being developed and will connect to 
this strategy. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the detailed review would be deferred to the Policy and 
Performance Environment Task and Finish group, and that individual 
members of the Committee could share comments with the 
Sustainable Transport Planner. 
 

187. PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 
 
The Panel considered the report that presented the Council’s financial and 
performance position for 2020/21. 
 
The Executive Head of Finance and Housing Strategy introduced the 
report and highlighted that the Council was in a strong position and could 
continue to provide services and maintain minimum levels of reserves that 
are required.  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted and that: 

(i) The KPI for Usage of the Point and The Berry Theatres exclude 
visits to the Cafe and;   

(ii) A KPI be identified and added relating to the economic health 
of town and local centres. 
 
 

188. TREES AND DEVELOPMENT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
DOCUMENT 
 
The Panel considered the report relating to the Trees and Supplementary 
Planning document. 
 
Cllr Kryle, cabinet lead for Environment introduced the report.  
 
The Senior Planning Policy Specialist provided the Panel with a summary 
explanation of the Trees and Development Supplementary Planning 
document. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

8



5 
 

That the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel noted the 
consultation draft Trees and Development Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) as part of the formal consultation process.                        
 

189. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Panel considered the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

190. POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL'S WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
The Panel considered the current Work Programme. 
 
The Monitoring Officer reminded the Chair that a representative of the 
panel needed to be appointed to the Housing Working Group.  
 
It was AGREED that – 
 

 The Work Programme be noted; and 

 Councillor Asman was appointed to the Housing Working 
Group. 

 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL  

14 October 2021 

INFORMATION DASHBOARDS TO MONITOR AND IMPROVE THE 
PERFORMANCE OF THE WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICE 

Report of the Executive Head for Neighbourhood Services 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Panel note and comment on the proposed dashboard for 
the Waste and Recycling Service. 
 

Summary 
 
Following a drop in performance for the Waste and Recycling Service, which was the 
result of several compounding issues such as major changes to rounds and market forces 
relating to recruitment and retention of key staff, a dashboard was requested by Policy and 
Performance Scrutiny Panel to aid better tracking of performance in order to be react 
faster to areas of concern. 

Focus for Scrutiny  

To consider the dashboard to establish whether it provides the data the Panel and the 
Service require to monitor performance.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 45 of the Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1990 requires the waste collection 
authority to collect ‘household waste’ in its area. In addition, Section 45A (3) of the EPA 
requires waste collection authorities to collect “at least 2 types of recyclable waste together 
or individually separated from the rest of the household waste”. Recyclable waste is 
defined as “household waste which is capable of being recycled or composted”.  

 

11

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates directly to the Corporate Plan objective of ‘Minimising waste 
and manging resources’ and providing an ‘Excellent environment for all’, by 
ensuring that the service delivered by the Council’s Waste and Recycling 
Team is closely monitored to enable the Team to respond to issues and 
changes in need quickly and effectively.  

Introduction 

2. Changes to waste collection days, the introduction of fortnightly (rather than 4 
weekly) glass and battery collection and harmonisation of collection days were 
introduced on 1 March 2021.  In addition to these significant changes, several 
additional factors including the national shortage of LGV drivers, the inability 
to recruit staff and existing staff absences due to Covid-19, have resulted in a 
reduction in service performance, with an increase in reported missed bins 
and repeat missed bins. 

3. However, a number of actions have been taken which have resulted in 
improvements to operational performance of the service, including weekly 
monitoring of performance, on-going refinement of collection rounds and 
enhanced internal and external communication. These have resulted in 
performance returning to acceptable levels, with reducing numbers of both 
missed collections and complaints.  

4. In order to sustain these improvements and ensure that the service can 
monitor performance and analyse trends in ‘real’ time, the waste and recycling 
team were keen to develop an information dashboard in order to quickly 
identify and profile problems and service issues across a range of activities. 
This would enable remedial action to be taken in a more effective and timely 
manner, leading to a sustained improvement in performance.  The service is 
currently reliant on spreadsheets and manual worksheets that take time to 
process/analyse. Following a recommendation by the Policy and Performance 
Panel a dashboard has been developed by the waste and recycling service 
with input from the Cabinet Portfolio Lead and will be demonstrated at the 
meeting on 16 September. 

Waste and Recycling Dashboard 

What is a dashboard? 

5. A dashboard is helpful to track performance through the production of metrics, 
such as missed bins and key data points that are relevant to the service and 
other stakeholders.  A dashboard is also a more visual source of information, 
utilising graphs in providing ‘at a glance’ views of how the service is operating.  
This provides enhanced visibility, improved efficiency, better forecasting and 
enables decisions to be intelligence- based. 

How will the dashboard work? 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

6. Currently missed bins are reported online, by email or by telephone via the 
Customer Service Centre (CSC).  This results in a worksheet being raised by 
the CSC against the property.  The worksheets are then actioned by the 
waste and recycling service and the support team. 

7. Salesforce, the Council’s case management system, pulls worksheet data 
from the waste management system (Whitespace) and turns this into a 
dashboard.  Two examples are below: 

 

8. The service will have the dashboard on display in the operations office and 
use the information to provide better feedback to crews to improve 
performance.   Staff will be able to identify issues at properties and work with 
individual crews to address issues which arise on their collection rounds. 
These will focus on addressing issues such as reducing repeat missed 
collections and ensuring our vulnerable residents who have assisted 
collections do not get missed.    

Financial Implications 

9. There are no financial implications from the development of the Dashboard as 
it was developed using internal resources and is for monitoring purposes only.  
If the data obtained from the dashboard leads to any changes in service that 
may have financial implications this will be reported on separately.  

Risk Assessment 

10. There is risk associated with not improving the monitoring of the Waste and 
Recycling service related to reputation. This service is unique in that it 
touches the lives of all of our residents on a weekly basis and is often the 
service by which the performance of the Council is judged, due to its profile. 
Additionally, there are health and safety implications through manual handling, 
access issues and the build- up of waste if poor performance is not addressed 
quickly.  The dashboard will enable the Council to track performance and be 
able to respond quickly to changes in service levels, minimising these risks 
into the future.   

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because It 
is a report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. 

 
Therefore, it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not 
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not 
been carried out. 

 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

11. There are no direct climate change and environmental implications for this 
report as the report relates to the introduction of a system for monitoring 
purposes only and is not related to proposed changes to the service.  

 

Conclusion 

12. As a result of issues relating to the Waste and Recycling Service a dashboard 
of measures has been created to aid better monitoring and therefore providing 
a more responsive and effective service for residents.  

PAUL NAYLOR 
EXECUTIVE HEAD OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES  

 
Date: 16 September 2021  
Contact Officer: Paul Naylor 
e-mail: paul.naylor@eastleigh.gov.uk  
Appendices Attached:  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 

14

mailto:paul.naylor@eastleigh.gov.uk


POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL  

Thursday, 14 October 2021  

UPDATE ON THE ONE HORTON HEATH MAJOR PROJECT 

Report of the Project Director 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel note progress 
with implementation of the aims and objectives for the One Horton Heath major 
development. 
 

Summary 
 
This report supports an update from the Project Director on the One Horton Heath major 
development project, two years since approval of the Project Brief.  The Project Brief 
includes the Council’s established vision, aims and objectives for building a new 
community over the next ten years.  The Committee will be updated on progress against 
the aims and objectives and headline issues as they relate to the Council’s long-term role 
as asset owner of the scheme. 

The masterplan for One Horton Heath is now at an advanced planning stage following 
strategic decisions since acquiring the land. The aim of the meeting is for Committee to 
receive an update on key approaches to date, and how this can assist in progressing the 
wider Housing Programme.   

Focus for Scrutiny 

 To receive an update from the Project Director on the practical ways in which the 
Council is addressing a range of project aims and objectives; 

 To discuss the opportunities and constraints experienced to date in addressing the 
aims and objectives; 

 To identify lessons learnt and potential policy reviews required to inform future 
Housing Programme schemes where applicable; 

 To receive an update from the Project Director on priorities for 2021/22 as this 
relates to addressing the aims and objectives; 

 To identify any specific policy areas of interest on which to receive future updates. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area 

15

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The One Horton Heath project addresses several corporate strategic 
objectives, as reflected in the Project Brief approved in July 2019. A Project 
Brief was prepared to inform the development activity in relation to land west 
of Horton Heath. 

2. The Project Brief was largely underpinned by the Council’s Corporate Plan 
(2015-2025). In preparing the Project Brief the Council’s corporate themes 
(green borough, healthy community, and prosperous place) provided a useful 
framework for considering how a Council-led development might help achieve 
wider strategic objectives.  

3. This alignment is addressed in the Project Brief which is published online at 
www.onehortonheath.co.uk/media/xrkbkehc/one-horton-heath-project-brief-
v4.pdf . Indeed, planning a sustainable new community is shown as a way to 
help improve transport infrastructure, demonstrate low carbon planning and 
design, provide an attractive new environment, and enable healthier lifestyles 
of new and existing residents. 

Introduction 

2. In March 2018 the Council acquired land located west of Horton Heath near 
Eastleigh.  Subsequently approvals were sought to acquire additional land 
parcels, and to ‘self-deliver’ the development rather than selling serviced land 
to the development industry.    

3. To lead and guide this major project the Council prepared and approved a 
Project Brief as mentioned above.  The Brief helped confirm the direction of 
travel or ‘roadmap’ for the Council’s development project team responsible for 
the design and implementation of the Council’s aspirations for the land.  The 
Project Brief includes aims and more detailed objectives under the following 
themes: 

(a) Housing Delivery (5 aims and 17 objectives) 

(b) Green Borough (5 aims and 11 objectives) 

(c) Healthy Borough (8 aims and 10 objectives) 

(d) Prosperous Borough (5 aims and 6 objectives) 

4. An extract and full list of the approved aims and objectives from the Project 
Brief are attached to this report (Appendix 1). 

5. The Project Brief is a non-statutory document and does not replace or remove 
the need for any legislative or Town and Country Planning processes that 
apply to a project of this scale and nature. 

16

http://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/media/xrkbkehc/one-horton-heath-project-brief-v4.pdf
http://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/media/xrkbkehc/one-horton-heath-project-brief-v4.pdf


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

6. The Committee will have an opportunity to ask questions about the approach 
taken to date by the development team to ensuring the emerging project and 
associated plans address the Project Brief. 

Project Progress  

7. Since acquiring the land, the Council has been establishing its position to 
deliver new homes and infrastructure and has launched the project as ‘One 
Horton Heath’.  

8. Committee will be familiar with the plans for One Horton Heath, and that 
works have commenced (first major pieces of road infrastructure are complete 
or due for completion summer 2021); enabling works and site clearance and 
preparation elsewhere on site have commenced, with phased demolition 
starting summer 2021. Subject to planning, the construction of new homes at 
the first phase (Lower Acre) is programmed to commence summer/ autumn 
2022. Works to date have been undertaken in accordance with pre-existing or 
new planning permissions as required (e.g. demolition applications).  

9. Most recently, a planning application was submitted for the final phase of the 
new link road between Hedge End and Bishopstoke passing through the One 
Horton Heath development. Further updates are online at 
www.onehortonheath.co.uk . 

Monitoring performance against the Project Brief 

10. Project performance is closely monitored with regards to timescales, financial 
and other targets, and programme milestones.  This is reported to a Project 
Board and Housing Programme Board.  The team also closely monitor the 
strategic delivery of the project i.e. how decisions and recommended 
strategies address the vision for the development in relation to the approved 
Project Brief: 

The Vision- One Horton Heath 

People are at the centre of our vision – the community that already live and 
work in Horton Heath, and the people who will live and work within the village 
in years to come. This project will create an exemplar development which is 
integral to Horton Heath engendering pride and a strong sense of place. The 
local area, and by extension the Borough, will become Greener, Healthier, 
more Prosperous with a more diverse supply of Housing as a direct result of 
this project. 

11. When approved, Cabinet was advised that the Project Brief is a ‘living’ 
document, and the detailed objectives will be kept under review.  The Project 
Brief was also intended to assist in evaluating performance i.e. whether we 
achieve what we set out to.  

12. Inevitably the project will confront changes, both internal and external, and 
need to be reactive and resilient to new opportunities and challenges.  The 
Project Brief provides a useful foundation against which to evaluate the 

17

http://www.onehortonheath.co.uk/


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Council’s ambitions for the project and check alignment with corporate 
priorities. 

13. The Committee is asked to note the feedback from the Project Director on the 
status of each aim and objectives. The large majority of these are ‘work in 
progress’ primarily because the issues have been captured and responded to 
through the masterplanning and design work prepared in recent months.  The 
Committee will also be briefed on some of the key opportunities which are 
currently being explored (e.g. solutions to reduce carbon emissions from 
development). The Committee may wish to identify specific areas of interest 
or where regular updates are required at future meetings. 

Eastleigh Borough Housing Programme  

14. The Committee will be familiar with the Council’s Housing Programme, of 
which One Horton Heath is a major project. A Cabinet report in June 2021 
provided an update on the Programme, including implementation of the 
Eastleigh Homes Delivery Strategy, approved December 2020 (available 
online at www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9026/appendix-1-housing-delivery-
strategy-2.pdf).   

15. This document sets out the overarching approach to the Council’s role in 
delivering new homes, and in many ways captures the aims and objectives of 
the One Horton Heath Project Brief, with its emphasis on achieving net-
benefits for local communities and the environment through building much-
needed new homes.  Not all the emerging policy responses developed 
through planning One Horton Heath will be applicable to the Council’s smaller 
housing projects.  Nonetheless, the investment in planning for One Horton 
Heath enables the Council to investigate innovative approaches and set 
targets which can be rolled out wider than One Horton Heath alone.   

Financial Implications 

16. There are no direct financial implications from this report.  Revised financial 
appraisals for the One Horton Heath project are approved by Cabinet and 
subject to scrutiny.  

Risk Assessment 

17. To reiterate, the masterplan for One Horton Heath is now at an advanced 
planning stage following strategic decisions since acquiring the land. The aim 
of the meeting is for Committee to receive an update on key approaches and 
solutions to date, and how this can assist in progressing the wider Housing 
Programme.   

18. The Project Brief is clear about its purpose, which is to guide the Council’s 
development team only. The Brief has no planning or policy status with 
regards to the Council’s role as local planning authority.   There are no risks 
therefore associated with updating the Committee on progress and 
performance.  The Local Planning Authority will play a key role in scrutinising 

18

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9026/appendix-1-housing-delivery-strategy-2.pdf
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/9026/appendix-1-housing-delivery-strategy-2.pdf


 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

compliance with planning policy (national and local) for all the Programme’s 
schemes. 

19. The Project Team will be responsible for testing, modelling, and monitoring 
the costs associated with the Brief’s requirements where appropriate.  Any 
new risks that are identified as part of the project delivery (e.g. risk to the 
delivery timescales or costs or quality) are reported to the relevant Board and 
mitigation put in place as part of the Project’s Risk Register.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

20. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only (i.e. scrutiny and 
performance monitoring).  It is proposed that the Project Team review and 
scope the requirements for Equality Impact Assessment for relevant plans and 
programmes associated with the Project (e.g. procurement) and report on this 
at a subsequent Committee if required.  

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

21. There are no direct impacts on Climate Change as a result of this report, but it 
is noted that the One Horton Heath project has significant climate change and 
environmental implications.  The environmental impacts and net benefits of 
the One Horton Heath project are set out elsewhere.  E.g. in May 2020 the 
Council submitted an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Scoping 
Request for One Horton Heath to help ensure the highest environmental 
standards for the new development. 

22. As above, the Project Team could report in more detail at a future date as to 
how the project is addressing this, particularly the objective in the Council’s 
Climate and Environmental Emergency Strategy (2019) to lead by example in 
its own activity.  As an overview however, the Committee will be briefed on 
some of the key objectives in the Project Brief as they relate to tackling 
climate change, and progress to date (e.g. reducing reliance on fossil fuels; 
net biodiversity gain; reducing water consumption and investment in 
sustainable transport modes).  

 

Conclusion 

23. The Council prepared a Project Brief in 2019 to guide delivery plans and 
activity for a new community at One Horton Heath.  Over the last two years 
the development team has been monitoring and reporting progress with the 
implementation of the 44 objectives and 23 strategic aims set out in the 
Project Brief.  The Committee will be updated on progress with 
implementation of the aims and objectives for the One Horton Heath major 
development.  

EMILY HOWBROOK 
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT MANAGER (HOUSING PROGRAMME) 

 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Date: 31 August 2021 
Contact Officer: Emily Howbrook 
Tel No:  
e-mail: Emily.Howbrook@eastleigh.gov.uk  
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

Appendix 1: List of Aims and Objectives (extracted from the Project Brief approved 2019) 

20



AIMS

RESIDENTIAL AIMS
AR1 Deliver the maximum reasonable quantum of residential development, in order to ensure efficient use of land and to protect countryside and gaps elsewhere within the Borough;

AR2 Deliver housing that is accessible and attractive to a wide variety of occupants, and which meets a range of specifically identified needs. This must include a minimum 35% affordable housing;

AR3 Deliver housing which creates an aspirational living environment and draws people to the development as a place to live and work.

AR4 Accelerate the pace of housing delivery compared to industry norms and in line with funding obligations from Homes England.

AR5 Ensure housing is adequate for modern living and working practices; and wherever possible is future-proofed for an ageing population, lifestyle changes and emerging trends.

GREEN BOROUGH AIMS
AG1 Invest in the environment and achieve a net biodiversity gain;

AG2 Through design, have a reduced energy demand and reduced reliance on unsustainable energy sources;

AG3 Actively seek innovative approaches to reducing water consumption and the impacts of waste water;

AG4 Proactively encourage and support the uptake of sustainable modes of transport (foot, bike, and public transport services) both internally and to/ from wider destinations;

AG5 Protect and enhance the site’s natural assets;

HEALTHY BOROUGH AIMS
AH1 Ensure that the new development is well-integrated with the existing village of Horton Heath, creating one extended community;

AH2 Actively encourage community interaction, (including through cultural provision) and create a strong sense of place and wellbeing;

AH3 Put healthy living and healthy living choices at the heart of the development;

AH4 Encourage and support active lifestyles for all;

AH5 Deliver well-designed and accessible education facilities which integrate-with and serve the community needs;

AH6 Address air quality impacts arising from the development;

AH7 Address noise pollution impacts arising from or affecting the development;

AH8 Encourage outdoor learning and play for all with a particular focus on access to nature;

PROSPEROUS BOROUGH AIMS
AP1 Deliver infrastructure ahead of residential development wherever possible and otherwise simultaneously with development;

AP2 Deliver a new strategic road between Bubb Lane and Allington Lane, which provides for more efficient travel times between Hedge End and Eastleigh Town Centre; and which is sufficient to accommodate predicted traffic flows and types;

AP3 Create employment opportunities and facilities fit for and compatible with future needs and working practices;

AP4 Through development and construction processes, to invest in the environment, local community and local economy; 

AP5 Create jobs and develop skills for current and future generations;

21



OBJECTIVES

RESIDENTIAL OBJECTIVES

OR1 Achieve a minimum of 40 Dwellings per gross developable hectare average across the site;

OR2 In addition to the above, a minimum of 40 Dwellings per gross developable hectare should be sought on a parcel by parcel basis, with the possible exception of parcels on/ around Chalcroft Farm (in order to respect the character and nature of that area);

OR3 Use innovative approaches and technologies to expedite the delivery of housing;

OR4 Maintain an up to date assessment of the housing market, local trends and needs/ demands for different housing tenures; and build-in sufficient flexibility to respond-to and meet identified needs and demands;

OR5 Include social rent tenures within the housing mix based on identified need and demand from the Council’s Housing Enabling Officer or registered provider partners;

OR6 Include Discount Market Sale product within affordable housing offering in response to local issues achieving low cost home ownership;

OR7 Subject to OR4, deliver circa 20% of residential development for the private rented sector to be retained in a rental portfolio by the Council;

OR8 Subject to OR4, include approximately 15% of total housing provided for later living/older persons such as a retirement village, extra care, dementia care and nursing home. [use classes to be refined following initial research.]

OR9 Provide general housing that meets part M of buildings regs with all later living/ older persons housing meeting part M4(2) and with M4(3) standards being provided to meet a specific identified need;

OR10 Investigate the potential for lower-priced co-living developments (with communal facilities), which can encourage social interaction and support the development of active communities.

OR11 Explore financial models allowing the Council to retain all affordable housing generated by the development;

OR12 Utilise innovative, non-standard approaches to create higher residential densities whilst maintaining high quality places and homes;

OR13 Ensure that new residences are ‘tenure-blind’ in terms of their external appearance and gross internal area; 

OR14 Meet specifically identified local housing needs – for instance, a need for bungalows, wheelchair accessible housing or other specialist accommodation – for specific users/ recipients as nominated by the Council’s Housing Enabling Officer;

OR15 Deliver homes which are simple and cost effective to operate and inhabit;

OR16 Create houses which are of sufficient size to ensure flexibility of use;

OR17 Follow the guidance provided by the ‘Building For Life 12’ standard, with a target of achieving at least 9 out of 12 points.

GREEN BOROUGH OBJECTIVES

OG1 Deliver a development which is highly energy efficient, with buildings that have minimal energy demand and net carbon emissions;

OG1 Deliver a development which is highly energy efficient, with buildings that have minimal energy demand and net carbon emissions;

OG2 Deliver a development which is not reliant on fossil fuels to meet its heating or energy demands;

OG3 Deliver a development which maximises opportunities for sustainable generation of energy onsite;

OG4 Deliver an exemplar scheme in terms of water consumption, actively seeking innovative means to reduce consumption of mains potable water;

OG5 Ensure that roof spaces are actively and meaningfully used wherever possible, for one of the following: a. Energy generation b. Sustainable urban drainage systems c. Amenity space

OG6
Encourage sustainable modes of transport, including cycling, walking and use of public transport, by ensuring connectivity, provision of safe, attractive and well-planned infrastructure, and by locating key services and facilities such that 

they are easily accessible by sustainable transport modes. Wherever possible, facilities should be centralised to encourage shared trips and reduce the need for travel;

OG7 Ensure that the development includes a suitable strategy for encouraging uptake of Electric Vehicles whilst retaining sufficient flexibility to respond to emerging trends and legislation;

OG8 Deliver high quality and multi-functional Green Infrastructure which serves the needs of the development and mitigates for its impacts;

OG9 Plan waste storage and collection arrangements such that domestic refuse bins are generally not visible from public areas; and to encourage and allow greater levels of recycling than is achieved across the Borough as a whole;

OG10 Plan waste storage and collection arrangements in order to achieve a reduction in the associated vehicle movements where possible.

OG11 Proactively seek ways to minimise the impacts of construction on the existing community, highway network and the environment;

22



HEALTHY BOROUGH OBJECTIVES

OH1 Deliver a local centre which acts as a hub for the community of Horton Heath as extended by the proposed development, and which meets the needs of that community;

OH2
Create high-quality formal open spaces, sports facilities and play areas to meet the needs of the development. Wherever possible, these uses should be consolidated into single facilities which are spatially central to the community 

and in a location of good accessibility;

OH3 Deliver attractive formal circular all-weather walking routes, of varying settings, which have an identified length and can function as suitable alternative natural green spaces to mitigate for impacts elsewhere;

OH4 Deliver a ‘Destination Play’ facility as part of the formal Open Space and Play Strategy which responds to the needs of the community of Horton Heath;

OH5 Create active buildings which discourage a sedentary lifestyle, and which encourage activity by virtue of their location and design; 

OH6 Plan development to actively encourage and enable children to walk or cycle to school;

OH7 Ensure that all education facilities are well-designed, well-connected, fully integrated within the wider development and multi-functional wherever possible;

OH8
Respond to and support implementation of a strategy for provision of health facilities, including access to GPs and primary care infrastructure, as set by the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Council’s Strategic Planning Lead for 

Health.

OH9 Ensure that formal and informal open spaces provide stimulating, creative and challenging outdoor learning and play opportunities for all;

OH10
Support the Council’s aspiration to provide a strategic pedestrian and cycle link between Botley, Hedge End (to the South) and Itchen Valley and Eastleigh Town Centre (to the North) that broadly follows the railway line – by 

providing an attractive route of appropriate design and width through the site from Bubb Lane (to the South) up to the point where Public Footpath ‘West End #3’ crosses the site boundary (to the North) adjacent to Hearts Copse.

PROSPEROUS BOROUGH OBJECTIVES

OP1 Within Employment uses on the site, to deliver incubation units and ‘move-on’/ progression spaces which allow and encourage local SMEs to expand;

OP2 To create buildings with access to modern infrastructure such as high-speed fibre broadband, and which encourage innovation, flexible working and a good work/ life balance;

OP3
To target and support the Solent LEP priority sectors – which are Advanced Manufacturing, Aerospace, Life Sciences and Healthcare, Digital Technologies, Digital Creative Industries, Information Economy, Construction and Clean / 

Green Technology.

OP4 To support the ‘Solent Area’ economy through prioritising use of Solent based SMEs during all stages of the development;

OP5 Ensure all parts of the development have access to public transport which offers regular services to key destinations which will include transport hubs, education and other local facilities and destinations.

OP6 Ensure that all public areas and built infrastructure are capable of adoption by a statutory undertaker or Local Authority, as appropriate;

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL  

Thursday, 14 October 2021  

CABINET  

Thursday, 25 November 2021 

ASSET TRANSFER POLICY 

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) The Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel considers and comment on the 

Asset Transfer Policy at Appendix A. 

(2) Cabinet approves the Asset Transfer Policy at Appendix A. 

 

Summary 
 
The Council has had a policy of Asset Transfers to town and parish councils since 1994.  
This document collates various previous related policy documents into a single and up-to-
date policy that reflects this approach. 

Focus for Scrutiny 

To consider the Policy and make any comments ahead of final approval. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 

 

Strategic Implications  

2. This Policy relates to taking decisions at the most local level, reflecting the 
Local First approach in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025. 

25

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Introduction 

3. The Council has had a policy on Asset Transfers since 1994. This document 
collates the existing policy approach from previous documents into one 
document. 

Asset Transfer Policy 

4. The Council has transferred a large number of assets to parish and town 
councils over many years, enabling those more local councils to make 
decisions and manage facilities closer to the people who use and benefit from 
those assets.  The Policy highlights the rationale and benefits of transferring 
assets. 

5. The Policy reflects the existing policy approach to Asset Transfers, so is 
therefore helpful for new Council staff, as well as parish and town councils, to 
understand the approach.  

Financial Implications 

6. There are no implications arising directly from the policy.  Work to transfer 
assets is carried out by services within existing budgets. Changes to asset 
ownerships are reflected in changes to the special expense element of the 
Council’s Council Tax calculations, and service planning each year.  

Risk Assessment 

7. An up-to-date single policy document clarifies the approach for Council staff 
and parish and town councils.   

Equality and Diversity Implications 

8. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. 

 

Climate and Environmental Implications 

9. Asset management decisions, including sustainability issues, will be a matter 
for the owner of any transferred asset (i.e. the parish or town council).  The 
Council will work with parish and town councils to encourage sustainable 
approaches to assets as part of the Council’s net zero carbon target by 2030. 

 

Conclusion 

10. The Policy at Appendix A reflects an existing and longstanding Council policy 
on Asset Transfers to town and parish councils. 

DICCON BRIGHT 
STRATEGIC PLANNING MANAGER 

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
Date: 22 September 2021 
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright  
Tel No: 023 8069 8436 
e-mail: diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Appendix A Asset Transfer Policy 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Asset Transfer Policy - September 2021 – Transfer of Assets to Parish and Town 

Councils 

 

Introduction 

Eastleigh Borough Council (“the Council”) has since 1994, adopted a policy of transferring 

assets to parish and town councils.  This process aligns with the Council’s approach to 

localism, working constructively with parish and town councils for the benefit of communities.  

The approach is based on the principle that decision-making should take place as close to 

communities as possible, which includes decisions both about the way an asset is managed 

and about how much money is raised and spent. It also gives parish and town councils the 

opportunity to play a greater role in improving their areas and the quality of life of their 

residents.  

The policy is based on the presumption that the Council will devolve assets unless it can be 

demonstrated that we can’t.      

This updated policy document includes policy decisions taken over several years and 

captures the current approach. 

Benefits of Asset Transfers 

1. Decision-making is devolved and locally controlled. 

 

2. Management, quality and improvements to assets are more responsive to local 

interests. 

 

3. Residents then contribute directly to the costs for their area, paying once (as now) via 

the parish or town council precept, with the Council’s precept in that parish adjusted 

down to reflect the devolved costs.  

(The Council will continue to act as the collection agency, collecting all the precepts 

for parish and town councils, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service, Hampshire 

County Council, Hampshire Constabulary and the Council itself). 

 

4. In the event of local government reorganisation, transfer of assets would ensure that 

control is retained at parish and town council level and not centralised to a remote 

unitary council or combined authority. 

 

Initial considerations 

5. Type of asset.  The Council welcomes discussion on transfer of any assets to parish 

and town councils; the most likely transfers will be of assets which have local 

relevance i.e. used and enjoyed by residents of a single parish or town council area. 

Where this is the case the policy presumption will be that the town or parish council 

rather than the Council, should own the asset, subject to Cabinet ratification. Parish 

and town councils should approach the Local Area Manager (LAM) in the first 

instance.  

 

6. Types of assets that will usually be transferred include: 

29



2 
 

a. Open spaces 

b. Countryside sites 

c. Allotments 

d. Cemeteries 

e. Play areas 

f. Community centres 

g. Bus Shelters 

h. Playing Fields 

i. Public Toilets. 

 

7. Assets of strategic importance and/or used by residents from across the Borough 

may also be considered, but are less likely to be approved by the Council for transfer. 

 

8. Designated sites: certain sites carry an ecological designation (SSSI, SINC, SAC, 

SPA, Ramsar, Local Nature Reserve, Local Wildlife Site) and require enhanced 

management. Protecting the ecological value of such sites is a part of the Borough’s 

Biodiversity Strategy and approach to tackling the Climate and Environment 

Emergency. Such assets will be considered by the Council for transfer, but parish 

and town councils should consider the extra management issues required for 

maintaining ecological designations and preserving amenity value. Specialist Council 

advice and services can be ‘bought-back’ by parish and town councils to support the 

management of designated sites. The Council reserves the right not to transfer such 

sensitive sites, and/or to transfer sites conditional on parish or town councils entering 

a service agreement with the Council for expert management and/or advice for a 

period of time, until the parish or town council has acquired such expertise. 

 

9. The Council encourages a strategic approach to asset transfers.  Agreements for 

transfers will be given by the Council in the context of the overall scope of potential 

transferable assets. This will avoid creating a patchwork of asset ownerships and 

management in a parish area which would be difficult to manage and confusing to 

residents.  

 

10. Good planning and timetabling is required on both sides so that changes to precepts 

and Special Expenses can be made ahead of budget decisions by both the Council 

and parish or town councils, and the issuing of Council Tax bills.  

 

11. The Council will bring the asset up to a reasonable standard and pay associated 

costs, ahead of transferring the asset, subject to negotiation with the parish or town 

council. The parish or town council may wish the asset to be improved to a higher 

standard and this is for the parish or town council to arrange and to meet these costs 

from their budget, setting their precept accordingly.  

 

12. Trees. The Council currently has a programme of both scheduled and reactive 

inspection and maintenance. Trees on land being transferred will be inspected and 

any necessary maintenance carried out ahead of transfer. The Council will provide 

advice concerning liabilities and costs relating to trees, and a buy-back service will be 

made available. Where there is a shared need across a number of parish and town 

councils the Council can arrange training for grounds maintenance staff.   

 

30



3 
 

13. Once an asset is identified for possible transfer, the process may involve a number of 

queries and issues to be resolved ahead of a formal decision on each side to 

proceed with a legal transfer. Local Area Managers will oversee this process.  

 

14. The Council decision about whether an existing asset can be transferred to a parish 

or town council will be made by the Council’s Cabinet.(A different process applies to 

assets arising from s106 agreements.) The Council’s Asset Management team will 

then issue an instruction to the Council’s Legal Services’ staff to undertake and 

complete a legal transfer. 

 

15. Identifying assets for transfer, tracking the process of pre-transfer and legal transfer 

work will be overseen internally by the Council’s Community Assets Board. The Local 

Area Manager will be point of contact for parish and town councils, usually liaising 

with the clerk. 

 

16. Where new assets are created as part of new developments, the Council has a clear 

process of early engagement with parish and town councils, negotiation with 

developers, informing the design and checking quality of provision by the developer 

and then legal transfer, first to the Council and then onward to the parish or town 

council, unless a direct transfer from the developer to the parish or town council 

proves possible. In some cases the Council, rather than the developer, will provide 

the asset (e.g. a play area). Local Area Managers can provide more information 

about this process. 

 

17. Early engagement with parish and town councils is appreciated on how many and 

which assets to transfer. This helps the Council to plan the work required to complete 

transfers, and plan for any changes to services e.g. where the Council requires a 

reduced staff team, due to work transferring to parish or town councils. 

 

Transfer process 

18. Assets will be transferred at a nil consideration. (See also section on ‘commuted 

sums’ below.) 

 

19. The Council will pay the reasonable legal costs of parish and town councils to 

transfer assets. This is currently (September 2021) deemed to be £750 per asset 

transfer. 

 

20. Use of assets post-transfer.  The legal transfer will include any relevant covenants 

which ensure the value of a piece of land or an asset to local people is protected. 

The Council may impose terms in a transfer that the parish or town council needs to 

seek agreement before disposal of an asset or a change of its use, or that a 

percentage (up to 100%) of the value of the asset realised on disposal accrues to the 

Council.  If disposal is considered, the Council should first be offered the asset back 

without cost. The transfer terms will also cover the situation where the parish or town 

council ceases to exist and there is no provision for the transfer of assets to another 

local authority. 

 

31



4 
 

21. In some cases the usage of a transferred asset may be safeguarded by the Council 

through a community use management agreement and/or agreed asset management 

plan. 

 

22. Prior to the completion of a legal transfer (and where this may take time to complete), 

town and parish councils may enter an agreement with the Council to manage and 

maintain the asset including enhancing the maintenance standard above that which 

the Council would usually apply, at the expense of the parish or town council. 

 

23. Each asset transfer is different and may carry a number of legal or technical issues to 

be resolved by several Council staff. The Council will seek to progress transfers 

without unnecessary delay. In rare cases Ministerial consent or public consultation 

may be required to effect a transfer. 

 

Post transfer 

24. Special Expenses. The Council uses ‘Special Expenses’ (an element of Council Tax) 

to raise funds from residents in each parish area to pay for local assets that the 

Council holds.  When an asset transfers, the Council will stop charging local 

residents this Special Expense element of Council Tax.  Parish and town councils 

may choose to increase or reduce their precept by a similar amount to fund their 

(new) costs of managing the asset.  Residents will not pay twice.  

 

25. Parish and town councils are advised to plan carefully for the repair and renewal of 

their assets. The parish or town council may request that the Council negotiates and 

collects further funding from future development for improvements and 

enhancements to the assets where future development would increase usage of the 

asset. This reflects the continued interest the Council has in supporting communities 

to have the best possible assets and community infrastructure, whoever is the owner 

of the asset. 

 

26. In some cases the Council may have ‘commuted sums’ i.e. funding collected from 

developers for the initial years of maintenance, which will be passed over to the 

parish or town council.  

 

27. The Council will assist town and parish councils with initial advice and guidance on 

management and maintenance of an asset e.g. trees. The Council may provide 

management plans and service specifications as starting points for parish and town 

councils to consider future management.  Town and parish councils should ensure 

that they have in-house or outsourced the required capability and capacity to manage 

and maintain assets once in their ownership. This may require new technical skills or 

knowledge e.g. in relation to trees or ecology, inspections of play equipment. 

 

Town and parish councils may ‘buy back’ services from the Council to manage and maintain 

assets that have been transferred. Such services would be funded by the town or parish 

council. The Council will draw up management plans, service level agreements and 

contracts to carry out such work. 

32



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: October 2021 to December 2021 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

18 October 2021 
 

Yes 

 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider and approve the 
Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Policy. 

Helen Devereux, 
Property Lawyer /  
 

Yes 

 
Corporate Enforcement Strategy  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

Approval of an overarching 
Strategy that sets the 
generic approach to the 
Council’s enforcement 
activity.  (Detailed 
approaches and procedures 
are contained in enforcement 
policies for each type of 
enforcement.) 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

33

A
genda Item

 9



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   18 Oct 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   13 Sep 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

9 December 2021 
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Asset Transfer Policy  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

This document codifies 
previous documents that 
over several years have 
made up the long-standing 
policy on Asset Transfers to 
parish and town councils. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   9 Dec 2021   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 

34



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Publication Date: 04 October 2021 
 

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Policy & Performance Scrutiny Panel 
Work Plan 2021/22 
16 September 2021 

Topic Attendees 

Use of Agency Staff in Direct Services (T&F) Paul Naylor 

NWWW Dashboard Review Paul Naylor 

One Horton Heath – Update and Policy Development  Chris Payne 

 

 

14 October 2021 
Topic Attendees 

Use of Agency Staff in Direct Services (T&F) Paul Naylor 

NWWW Dashboard Review Paul Naylor 

One Horton Heath – Update and Policy Development Chris Payne 

Asset Transfer Policy Diccon Bright 

  

  

 

18 November 2021 
Topic Attendees 

Kick off: Future Housing Standards  
TF group to examine how the quality of the council’s 
future housing stock can be monitored and maintained 

Andy Smith, (Social Policy Lead?) 

Biodiversity Action Plan & SPD; Nature Recovery Strategy Paul Howe 

Performance Data, Q1&2 Exec heads 

  

  
  

 

6 December 2021 
Topic Attendees 

Climate and Environment Emergency Action Plan update  Andy Brennan (confirmed) 

CAP Updates 
Cabinet progress against CAP items 

Diccon Bright 

Active Lifestyle Strategy (Early Engagement, T&F) Andrew Saunders (Confirmed) 
TBC Art & Culture Strategy Nickola Moore 

Tree Strategy Diccon Bright 

TBC Complaints Policy/Persistent Complainants Jo Cassar/Louise O’Driscoll (Confirmed) 

  

 

37

Agenda Item 10



13 January 2022 
Topic Attendees 

Equality Strategy (Update on Progress)  

  
  

  

  

  

 

10 February 2022 
Topic Attendees 

Budget Sarah King, Andy Smith 

Performance Data, Q3  

 

 

 

10 March 2022 
Topic Attendees 

Public Transport Operators (Bus and Rail)  

  
  

  

  

  
  

 

 

Items Expected but not Scheduled 
Topic Attendees 

High Streets Strategy (Pre-decision)  

Hospital Consultation (External Consultation)  

  
  

  

  

  

 

Items for next programme: 

May 

Community Safety Partnership Review Melvin Hartley, Hampshire Police 

38



 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

41

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 New Ways with Waste Dashboard Review
	7 One Horton Heath - Update and Policy Development
	UPDATE ON THE ONE HORTON HEATH MAJOR PROJECT App 1

	8 Asset Transfer Policy
	Asset Transfer Policy app 1

	9 Cabinet Forward Plan
	10 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme
	16 September 2021
	14 October 2021
	18 November 2021
	6 December 2021
	13 January 2022
	10 February 2022
	10 March 2022
	Items Expected but not Scheduled

	12 Use of Agency Staff in Direct Services

